Lavaca County 
Turn Vereins, Schuetzen Vereins & Shooting Clubs
Source Key:
*HH: Hallettsville Herald
*HH&P: Hallettsville Herald and Planter
*HNE: Hallettsville New Era
*LCD: Lavaca County Deed Records
*LCT: Lavaca County Tribune
*LCTH; Lavaca County Tribune Herald
*ME: Moulton Eagle
*Minear Notes
*NEH: New Era Herald
*SG: Shiner Gazette
*Spies: Rural Schools of Lavaca County

Appelt Hill Schuetzen Verein: Appelt Hill (1882 – Present)
1882: Appelt Hill is located six miles north and ¼ mile east of Hallettsville.  It was settled by August J. Appelt, who with other neighbors started the Appelt Hill Schuetzen Verein on August 20, 1882.  

1884: The Verein purchased 4 acres  on December 15, 1884, from John Woods, Antonio & Frank Hauser. (LCD 2/659)

1890: F.A. Farley sold approximately 2 acres to the Verein on October 13, 1890, for a road to Appelt Hill Hall. (LCD 19/787)

1894: On June 9, 1894, 7 and  ¼ acres were purchased by the Verein from John Schornak and William Heinsohn. (LCD 19/561,564)

1894: After the purchase of six acres, the Verein sold the four acres purchased in 1884 and the two acres purchased in 1890 to Joseph Selzer on December 19, 1894.  (LCD 20/544)




Breslau Schuetzen Verein: Breslau (1883 – 1951)
1883: The Verein was organized on the third of May 1883.

1894: H.H. Hoffmann deeded 1 and 35/100 acres to Breslau Schuetzen Verein on October 27, 1894.  (LCD 20/269)

1894: New hall dedicated. (SG November 1, 1894)

1923: Alex Kuykendall deeded 67/100 acres to the Verein on January 18, 1923. (LCD 91/423)

1951: Breslau Schuetzen Verein called a meeting for the purpose of submitting to the membership the sale of its property. (LCT March 9, 1951)

1951: Verein sold 2 acres to A.W. Spies on April 11, 1951, including improvements thereon; dance hall, beer and soda water stand etc.  Spies demolished the buildings.  (LCD 168/160)

The Breslau Gun Club later merged with the Appelt Hill Club. (Appelt’s Hill Gun Club Records)

Hallettsville Schuetzen Verein: Hallettsville (1869 - 1904)
Hallettsville Shooting Club 
German Shooting Club
1869: Hallettsville Schuetzen Verein was the first in the county and was organized in 1869.    The club used an area north of Hallettsville that became known as Schuetzen Verein Park.  It was in the city park now occupied by the American Legion Hall.  (Minear) 

1874: Lee & Lucretia Green sold three acres located about ½ mile N of the Lavaca County Courthouse to the Verein on May 15, 1874. (LCD R/252)

1888: The Verein added to its holding on May 7, 1888, when it purchased 2 3/7 acres from H.H. Green.  The survey mentioned the SE corner of the German Shooting grounds in the legal description of the sale. (LCD 6/662)
1891: Schuetzen Verein resolved to build a double track ten-pin alley on the Verein property. (HH March 5, 1891)

1901: Situated on the grounds in the northern part of Hallettsville was destroyed by fire.  (HH November 14, 1901)

1904: In 1904, the existing Verein was dissolved and on August 20, 1904, the trustees who had been in office when the 5 3/7 acres of Verein property was sold to the Verein in 1874 & 1888 sold the property to the current trustees of the Verein. (LCD 44/418) (LCD 44/420)

1904: The new trustees immediately sold the property to the Hermann Sohne Verein. (LCD 44/420)

Hallettsville Schuetzen Verein: Hallettsville (1911- ?)
1911: Hallettsville Schuetzen Verein was again organized in May of 1911.  (HNE May 19, 1911)

1911:The new Hallettsville Schuetzen Verein held its first celebration. (HNE May 26, 1911)

1926: The Verein will hold its annual shooting contest in Hermann Park. (HH October 1, 1926)

The Verein may have consolidated with Appelt Hill Verein. (LCT June 30, 1959)

Hermann Sohne Verein Park (1904 – 1928)
1904: Hallettsville Schuetzen Verein to Hermann Soehne Park Verein 5 3/7 acres of land $700. (HNE May 19, 1905) 

1906: Hermann Park Verein incorporated and will erect a 50X100 feet hall on its property known as the Schuetzen Park.  (HNE December 7, 1906)
1906: The Hermann Park Verein met at the Opera House Sunday afternoon and authorized Contractor Joseph Leopold to present
specifications for the new hall at the next meeting of the Verein.  (HNE December 14, 1906)

1907: Dedication of new hall set for April 29, 1907.    (HNE March 29, 1907)

1907: The Hermann Park Verein hall is going up rapidly now.  The entire cost of the hall will be close to $2,900.  (HNE March 22, 1907)

1907: The Hermann Sohne Verein Park will dedicate their new hall and pavilion Monday April 29th.  Old pavilion was destroyed by fire.  (HH April 11, 1907.)

1928: Hallettsville Hermann Verein sold 3.97 acres including dance hall and out building to Moltke Lodge No. 19 O.D.H.S. for $2,250.  (HH February 7, 1928)  (HH April 10, 1928)

Hallettsville Rifle Club (1919)
Events were held at the Hermann Sohne Verein Park.

Karney Shooting Club: Karney (1889 - ?)
1889: There has been a shooting club organized at Karney.  They met yesterday to decide the time for shooting and about the prizes.  (HH September 5, 1889)

1891: Karney Rifle Club shooting match. (HH May 21, 1891)

Lavaca Turn Verein: Hallettsville
1889: Park & pavilion north of Hallettsville. (HH May 9 & July 18, 1889)

1891: Will meet to discuss important business. (HH December 10, 1891)

Lone Star Schuetzen Verein Rifle Club: Shiner (1893 - ?)
1893: The Lone Star Hall was located four miles SW of Shiner.  The hall was built in March 1893 situated in a small grove of trees and is reached by the Hochheim road leading from Shiner.  The Turners occupied the hall every other Sunday and gave free exhibitions. (SG September 28, 1893)

Oakland Schuetzen Verein: Oakland
1897: Oakland gave a Schuetzen Fest.  (HH October 7, 1897)

Phoenix Schuetzen Verein: Wied (1891 – 1911)
1891: The Wied Phoenix Schuetzen Verein, a voluntary association, was established on March 1, 1891.  Shooting competitions, May Feasts, King
Feasts and balls were held from 1891 to 1911.  This recreation hall was located off present day FM 1891 and near the corner of Lavaca County Road 179.  

1891: On September 19, 1891, Rudolph F. Kahlich sold two acres to the Phoenix Schuetzen Verein.  (LCD 14/488)

1903: The Phoenix Schuetzen Verein has decided to build a new hall soon.  The last dance at the present hall will be given on the 27th of this month.  (SG June 17, 1903)
1903: Verein decided to give the last ball on June 27th in the old hall and are then going to build a new one.  (HH June 18, 1903)

1903: The new hall of the Phoenix Schuetzen Verein at Wied is being built by Kasper and Niemeyer of Shiner. (HH July 23, 1903)

1903: Dedication of new hall. (SG September 2, 1903)

1903: On October 6, 1903, Rudolph F. Kahlich sold 1/8 acre to the Verein.  (LCD 41/212)

1911: The Phoenix Schuetzen Verein sold 2 1/8 acres for $800 to Rud. Benes on March 8, 1911.  (LCD 60/288)
1911: The last Maifest of the Phoenix Schuetzen Verein was held Monday at Wied having been determined by the members to dissolve the organization.  (HH May 19, 1911)

Schoenfelder Schuetzen Verein: Pagel Settlement (1869 – 1911)
1869: Gottfried Pagel organized the Pagel Settlement Schuetzen Verein in 1869.  (Pagel Family Times June 2011)

1886: Joseph Neumann sold 4 ½ acres to the Schoenfelder Schuetzen Verein on December 6, 1886. (LCD 4/687)

1911: On Monday October 2, the Schoenfelder Schuetzen Verein will sell their land, hall, benches, fences and other improvements to the highest bidder. (HNE September 15, 1911)

1911: The Verein sold 4 ½ acres to Frank Rother Sr. on October 2, 1911. (LCD 62/161)

1911: The farewell feast given by the old members of the Schoenfelder Schuetzen Verein, which had to dissolve on account of so many moving away, was largely attended at Pagel Settlement.  HNE October 6, 1911

Sublime Rifle Club: Sublime (1889 - ?)
1889: The citizens of Sublime had a meeting at the depot building for the purpose of organizing a shooting club.  Thirty-seven names were enrolled and the organization was named the Sublime Rifle Club. (HH December 5, 1889)

1890: On April 15, 1890, the S.A. & A.P. Co. to Sublime Rifle Co. Subdivision No. 90 fronting 300 feet on south First St.  (LCD 11/585)

1904: The hall at Sublime belonging to the Sublime Rifle Club was burned yesterday.  (HNE October 28, 1904)

William Tell Schuetzen Verein: Witting
1883: One of the oldest organizations in Witting was the William Tell Schuetzen Verein begun on April 29, 1883.  It operated as a shoot club and later built a hall.  (ME  June 28, 1991 )

1885: On August 1, 1885, L. Hemmi deeded 4 acres to E.A. Meitzen, R.W. Beaner and D. Garbade of the Witting Gun Club. (LCD 3/752)

1903: The Witting Gun Club has decided to erect a new dance hall soon. (HH April 2, 1903)

1912: Dance Hall will receive a new roof. (HNE February 2, 1912)

1945: On April 25, 1945, the Witting Gun Club, also known as Witting Club and William Tell Gun Club, deeded four acres of land to Joe Krause, all buildings thereon, including dance hall, beer and soda stand and other buildings. (LCD 145/191)




